NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS
FILED
IN THE UNITED STATES DISTRICT COYRT
FOR THE NORTHERN DISTRICT OF TEXAS APR - 4 2007
DALLAS DIVISION
CLE‘}ilf,y. DISTRiCT CCURT

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA § REN Doputy

§
V. § No. 3:07-CR-77-R

§ (Supersedes indictment returned
DONALD L. JONES (1) § March 7, 2007, as to all defendants)
a/k/a “Don Jones” §
JOSEPH B. JACKSON, SR. (2) §
a/k/a “Joseph Jackson” §
DONALD MATHEW JONES (3) §
a/k/a “Mat Jones” §
DANIEL J. SATTIZAHN (4) §
ROBERT PATTERSON, JR. (5) §
a/k/a “Bob Patterson” §
CATHERINE L. DIKE (6) §
a/k/a “Cathy Dike” and “Cathy Carter” §
WILLIAM BARNES (7) §
FODAY S. FOFANAH (8) §

INDICTMENT
The Grand Jury Charges:
Introduction

At all times material to this indictment:

1. Defendants Donald L. Jones, also known as Don Jones, and Joseph B.
Jackson, Sr., also known as Joseph Jackson, held themselves out as real estate investors
who owned and operated Affordable Homebuilders and the YIN Group in Irving, Texas.

2. Defendant Donald Mathew Jones, also known as Mat Jones, was an

employee of Affordable Homebuilders.
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3. Defendant Daniel J. Sattizahn and a person known to the grand jury were
business partners in a mortgage broker business.

4. Defendant Robert Patterson, Jr., also known as Bob Patterson, was a loan
officer licensed by the Texas Department of Savings and Mortgage Lending.

5. Defendant Catherine L. Dike, also known as Cathy Dike and Cathy Carter,
was an escrow officer licensed by the Texas Department of Insurance.

6. Straw borrower J. Mays purchased 1419 Broadmoor Lane, Irving Texas.

7. Straw borrower J. King purchased 1413 and 1418 Broadmoor Lane, Irving,
Texas and 1911 FWimbled.on Drive, Arlington, Texas.

8. Straw borrower L. Deblanc purchased 2000 Shadow Ridge, 1901
Wimbledon Drive and 4710 Racquet Club Drive, Arlington, Texas.

9. Straw borrower A. Reeves purchased 1318 Broadmoor Lane, Irving, Texas.

10.  Straw borrower M. Gibbs purchased 2304 Woodsong Trail, Arlington,
Texas and 1300 Broadmoor Lane, Irving, Texas.

11.  Straw borrower K. McCampbell purchased 1408 Glenbrook Drive, Irving,
Texas.

12.  Straw borrower T. Dehorney purchased 1311 Broadmoor Lane, Irving,
Texas.

13.  Straw borrower S. Sattizahn purchased 1406 Broadmoor Lane, Irving

Texas.
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14.  Straw borrower J. Hyde purchased 1315 Glenbrook Drive, Irving, Texas.

15.  Straw borrower S. Lucky purchased 1218 Preston Drive, Sherman, Texas.

16.  Straw borrower K. Wilson purchased 2209 Post Oak Drive, Sherman,
Texas.

17.  Straw borrower S. Boss purchased 3420 Beech Street and 3415 Orchid
Lane, Rowlett, Texas.

18.  Defendant William Barnes recruited straw borrower S. Boss.

19.  Defendant Foday S. Fofanah recruited straw borrower K. Wilson.

20. Frerﬁont Investment and Loan was a financial institution, the accounts of
which were insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC).

21.  Long Beach Mortgage Company was a wholly-owned subsidiary of
Washington Mutual, a financial institution, the accounts of which were insured by the
FDIC.

22.  National Land Title, which also did business as First Land Title, a real
property title business licensed by the Texas Department of Insurance, maintained
Compass Bank escrow account number ******3981 and First Bank of Canyon Creek
escrow account number ***9152 to close real estate transactions.

23.  Blue Star Title, a real property title business licensed by the Texas
Department of Insurance, maintained Washington Mutual escrow account number

**kkkk1081 to close real estate transactions.
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24.  Stewart Title North Texas, Inc. (Stewart Title), a real property title business
licensed by the Texas Department of Insurance, maintained Texas Capital Bank escrow
account number ******7873 to close real estate transactions.

25.  Chapin Title, a real property title business licensed by the Texas
Department of Insurance, maintained American Bank of Texas escrow account number
***0273 to close real estate transactions.

26. Defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B. Jackson, Sr. maintained Bank
One business checking account number *****93(2 in the name of Affordable
Homebuilders, Inc.

27.  Defendant Donald Mathew Jones maintained Bank One business checking

account number *****7883 in the name of BSCI Group LLC.
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Count One
Conspiracy to Commit Wire Fraud and Bank Fraud
(Violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1349 (18 U.S.C. §§ 1343 and 1344))

1. The Grand Jury adopts, realleges and incorporates by reference herein the
allegations set forth in the Introduction of this indictment as though fully set forth herein.

2. Beginning in or about October 2003, the exact date being unknown to the
Grand Jury, and continuing through on or about May 2, 2005, in the Dallas Division of
the Northern District of Texas, and elsewhere, defendants, Donald L. Jones, also known
as Don Jones, Joseph B. Jackson, Sr., also know as Joseph Jackson, Donald Mathew
Jones, also known as Mat Jones, Daniel J. Sattizahn, Robert Patterson Jr., also known
as Bob Patterson, Jr., Catherine L. Dike, also known as Cathy Dike and Cathy Carter,
William Barnes, and Foday S. Fofanah, did intentionally and willfully combine,
conspire, confederate and agree with each other and others known and unknown to the
Grand Jury, to commit offenses against the United States, that is, wire fraud, in violation
of 18 U.S.C. § 1343, and bank fraud, in violation of 18 U.S.C. § 1344.

Scheme and Artifice to Defraud

3. It was part of the conspiracy that the defendants, along with others known
and unknown to the Grand Jury, did devise a scheme and artifice to defraud and obtain
money from mortgage lenders and financial institutions and, for the purpose of executing

and in furtherance of the scheme and artifice to defraud, did:
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a. knowingly cause to be transmitted, in interstate commerce, by means
of wire and radio communications, certain writings, signs, signals and sounds constituting
wire transfers of money to close straw borrowers’ purchases of certain residences; and

b. knowingly cause to be submitted fraudulent mortgage loan
applications and documents to financial institutions to obtain money to close straw
borrowers’ purchases of certain residences.

4. It was part of the scheme and artifice to defraud that the defendants would
and did:

a. locate single family residences located in and around the Dallas,
Texas area offered for sale;

b. recruit straw borrowers to purchase the targeted single-family
residences;

c. inflate the sales prices of the targeted single-family residences to an
amount greater than the fair market value of the residences;

d. prepare and submit false and fraudulent loan applications in the
names of the straw purchasers to secure mortgage loans for the targeted single-family
residences in amounts substantially greater than the fair market value of the purchased
residences;

e. obtain substantially inflated loans from mortgage lenders and

financial institutions based on false and fraudulent misrepresentations about repairs that
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were to be made on the targeted single-family residences as well as the value of such
residences; and
f. pay the original owners of the targeted single-family residences and
distribute the remaining fraudulently-obtained loan proceeds among themselves.
Overt Acts
5. In furtherance of the conspiracy, and in order to affect its objects, the
defendants and their co-conspirators, committed and caused to be committed the
following overt acts, among others, in the Dallas Division of the Northern District of
Texas, and elsewhere:

1419 Broadmoor Lane, Irving, Texas

6. On or about October 24, 2003, defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B.
Jackson, Sr. recruited straw borrower J. Mays to purchase 1419 Broadmoor Lane, Irving,
Texas for $295,500 from bona fide seller R. Mynster.

7. On or about October 24, 2003, defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B.
Jackson, Sr. caused a fraudulent Update Contract to be executed.

8. Sometime on or before October 31, 2003, the exact date being unknown to
the Grand Jury, defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B. Jackson, Sr. caused
fraudulent loan application documents to be submitted to Accredited Home Lenders, Inc.
for financing of $295,000 for straw borrower J. Mays’ purchase of 1419 Broadmoor

Lane, Irving, Texas from bona fide seller R. Mynster.
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0. On or about October 31, 2003, defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B.
Jackson, Sr. caused Accredited Home Lenders, Inc. to fund and transmit by wire
communication $237,998.34 and $58,982.24 to National Land Title towards the closing
of straw borrower J. Mays’ purchase of 1419 Broadmoor Lane, Irving, Texas from bona
fide seller R. Mynster.

10.  On or about November 5, 2003, defendants Donald L. Jones, Joseph B.
Jackson, Sr. and Catherine L. Dike caused National Land Title to wire transfer $63,000
to Bank One account number *****9302.

1418 Broadmoor Lane, Irving, Texas

11.  On or about December 1, 2003, defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B.
Jackson, Sr. recruited straw borrower J. King to purchase 1418 Broadmoor Lane, Irving,
Texas for $305,000 from bona fide seller R. Brown.

12.  On or about December 1, 2003, defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B.
Jackson, Sr. caused a fraudulent Update Contract to be executed.

13.  On or about December 5, 2003, defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B.
Jackson, Sr. caused fraudulent loan application documents to be submitted to WMC
Mortgage Corporation for financing of $305,000 for straw borrower J. King’s purchase of
1418 Broadmoor Lane, Irving, Texas from bona fide seller R. Brown.

14.  On or about January 5, 2004, defendants Donald L. Jones and Joseph B.

Jackson, Sr. caused WMC Mortgage Corporation to fund and transmit by wire
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